Early Settlers Arrive


More than 250 years ago, Indians inhabited this land and hunted along Flat Branch Creek.  In 1824, Samuel Widick arrived from Kentucky and became the first white man to settle here. The land contained such bountiful wild game that he would stand in his doorway and shoot deer.


 Over the next few years, John Armstrong, Robert Tolly and others arrived and erected the first log cabins. In 1831, Jacob Traughber moved to Moweaqua Township, which later became our village. 


Most homes were built from logs the settlers cut. They used no nails and filled the gaps between logs with mud or clay. In 1834, James Tolly constructed the area’s first frame house from actual boards.


Meanwhile, the Indians continued living in nearby camps and visited often. The hard-working pioneers took care of themselves, obtaining food by hunting, growing or harvesting. Women cooked meals over fireplaces and served them on wooden plates or bowls. Pewter or china dishes were too scarce or expensive.


Clothing was made using wool, flax and animal skins. Women carded, spun and wove the cloth and dyed it using tree barks, roots, flowers and berries. Large kettles heated water for laundry and bathing. Men wore squirrel or raccoon-skin caps with tails dangling in back.  A well-dressed man wore a fringed or buckskin shirt and trousers with moccasins.


If a family couldn’t get something needed from the land or make it themselves, they traveled to Springfield, the closest good-sized settlement.  It took several days driving in an oxen-pulled wagon to reach Springfield. Families purchased flour at a Shelbyville mill and mailed their letters for 25 cents in Decatur, the nearest post office. In 1834, stamps were not yet used.



In 1836, area children began attending the first log schoolhouse. The seats were constructed from split logs without desks or seat backs. A large, open fireplace provided heat.


During the next 10 years, more settlers arrived and worked the land.

A Village is Born
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In 1835, Michael Schneider borrowed $50 to buy 40 acres of government land in Christian County.  Two years later, he settled there with his wife, Margaret, in a log cabin just west of the present Moweaqua city limits. The Schneiders eventually had seven children who later changed the family name to Snyder.
Over time, Michael Schneider owned 2000 acres in this area. In 1852, he selected the present site of Moweaqua to become a town and plotted part of his land for this purpose. During this time, Schneider also constructed the first store building, gave land for a sawmill and gristmill to be built, and donated land to encourage the coming of a railroad.
Moawequa or Moweaqua?

What does the town’s name mean?


A. muddy water 


B. weeping woman


C wolf woman



D. Indian name for the South Fork of the Sangamon River.

All of these answers have been suggested as the reasoning behind our village’s unique name, but no one is certain as to the true answer.  


Mattie Wells originally named the village MOAWEQUA. This spelling appears in many places, including the town’s newspaper, census records, Illinois Central Railroad and on bricks made locally during this time. Later, the spelling was changed to MOWEAQUA. According to the August 28, 1890 Moweaqua newspaper, the spelling was changed by the 

U. S. Government in naming the post office while others say it was accidentally misspelled while being registered in Shelby County. As a result, we live in the only Moweaqua in the world.

A Town Develops


The 1850s saw Moweaqua grow from scattered homes settled on the prairie to a town with many conveniences. It became easier to get needed goods and services without traveling great distance. By 1855, Moweaqua had its own general store with post office, flourmill, sawmill, hotel, blacksmith, railroad service and Methodist Church.
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Coffman Mill – 1895 – note first water tower at right

During the 1860s and 1870s, the town prospered and grew as:

· a new two-story frame school and more churches were built;

· the first town doctor arrived;

· the first newspaper, “The Moawequa Register,” was published; 

· a funeral home and the first cemetery began operating; and  

· the first bank was established.


In the 1880s, the first of three town water towers was built.  Town founder Michael Schneider also gave land for a city park still used today.  The town now housed a telephone company, several restaurants and bakeries, a drugstore, a contractor/builder, a real estate and insurance agent, a dentist and a horse breeder.

A family could purchase many goods in town:

· groceries and dry goods

· building materials, hardware, lumber and tile

· furniture, stoves and tinware

· clothing, boots and shoes
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1890s- West Main – note boardwalk

During the next 10 years, the population doubled to nearly 1600 people. A library and a new red brick school with six rooms and 12 grades were erected.  Additionally, about 20 country schools operated in the area. 

The town was considered up-to-date with local and long distance phone service, an excellent water system, fire protection, brick sidewalks, numerous stores, electricity in homes and businesses, a coal mine and a strong farming community. Many buildings on North Main were brick.  In 1890, the town’s name changed to Moweaqua because of the accidental misspelling.

Pioneers of Note

Tom Ponting:
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Tom Ponting arrived here in 1850 and organized cattle drives to Chicago and New York.  He traveled extensively to buy and sell his cattle, which also won top prizes at many cattle shows. In 1854, Ponting sold the first Texas longhorns in New York City. He married Michael Schneider’s daughter, Margaret and had seven children. By the turn of the century, Ponting owned 2700 acres in Illinois and Texas.
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Alfred Campbell:




Captain Alfred Campbell, a distinguished veteran officer of two wars and a leading farmer, came to Moweaqua in 1851. He served in the 1846 Mexican War and the Civil War. In 1880, he was elected Representative from the 33rd Senatorial District of Illinois.

James Gregory:

James Gregory arrived in Moweaqua in 1858 in a covered wagon with his family. He was 13 years old. During the 1870s, Gregory was Moweaqua’s mayor and was instrumental in securing village improvements in sewerage, water works, electric lighting and cement walks. He was also active in school matters.

Thomas Jefferson Gregory:


His brother Thomas Jefferson Gregory also journeyed here in that covered wagon. He was the grandfather of Mark Gregory who dedicated 42 years to educating Moweaqua students as a teacher, elementary school principal and superintendent. Moweaqua Elementary School was renamed Gregory Elementary School upon his retirement. June 3, 2001, was officially named Mark Gregory Day in Illinois.

Ephraim Adamson:


Ephraim Adamson, a highly respected farmer, settled near Moweaqua in 1868. He served as one of Abraham Lincoln’s bodyguards in the Civil War and at the time of his assassination. His son, David, was in the Moweaqua hardware business for 53 years.

BUSINESSES AND SERVICES

By the turn of the century, the population remained steady at approximately 1600 with over 500 children. Businesses continued to develop and grow. Livery stables, harness shops, and blacksmiths were very lucrative because of the popularity of the horse and buggy. Many grocery stores, restaurants, and drug stores existed throughout the town. Moweaqua citizens also enjoyed three movie theaters, a skating rink, and several hotels. [image: image3.jpg]


Early 1900s

 The luxurious hotels impressed guests with monogrammed napkins, parlors, and gas lighting.
From 1889 – 1901 the Palace Hotel was the largest facility between Decatur and Pana with 31 bedrooms, two parlors and dining for 50.

Railroad

The railroad came to Moweaqua in 1854 using the freight house as the ticket office. The first depot was not built until 1899. The railroad helped make Moweaqua a popular stop creating more businesses. Soon after the turn of the century, train travel through town became less popular. The railroad found shorter distances between the big cities; thus, bypassing Moweaqua. Automobiles were invented and found their way to town by 1908. Large trucks would soon follow. By 1924, State Route 2 (Highway 51) was completed.

In the 1930s, eight passenger trains traveled daily. Four went north; four went south.  
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First train depot, north of Madison Street – 1918

Water Tower
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The first water tower, built in the late 1800s was located by Coffman’s Mill. In 1907, the village replaced the old wooden tower with a new larger brick water tower closer to the center of town. A decorative fence with lights surrounded it, and the town fire bell was attached. By 1968, construction began on the third water tower. Located in the 600 block of East Main, it was shorter but held 90,000 more gallons of water. The original fire bell hangs on the current water tower.

Hospital

As the town grew, so did the need for a hospital. Doctor James Sparling and his wife, Elsie, opened the Moweaqua Hospital in 1924. The self-sufficient hospital grew and cooked its own food for the patients. It housed only nine beds but in the first year cared for 92 patients. It cost $2 per day to stay in the hospital. Dr. Sparling and his family lived in the hospital the first year. The hospital added an elevator, refrigerator, 

city water, laundry equipment, and electric patient bells as the number of patients increased. Decatur newspapers called the hospital “A City Hospital in a Country Town.”

The hospital, located at 309 E. Elm St., cared for various medical cases:

· amputations

· gall-bladder removals

· babies’ births

· coal mine and automobile accidents

The hospital remained an important part of the community and the surrounding area for another 20 years. However, the increased availability of more up-to-date medical services in the area caused the hospital to close in the late 1950s.

Did you know…

· Some patients paid their bills with chickens, ducks, or beef?

· At first, patients called the nurses by ringing a hand-held bell?

SCHOOLS
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In 1860, Moweaqua built a new two-story frame school at 130 N. Putnam. By 1878, a larger two-story brick school had been built on North Hanover across from Central Park. The school had only three large rooms for teaching the lower grades. 
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In 1890, the “Little Red School House” was built on South Putnam. There was space for all 12 grades. A school remodel project in 1920 added new rooms and 13 faculty members. Just four years later, another building containing more classrooms and the first gymnasium was added on.

Children living in the country did not attend the red brick school. Instead they had their own schools, approximately 22 small, one-room buildings. A country school might have anywhere from 5 - 25 students in the first eight grades. By 1947, all but one of the country schools had closed. The rural children joined the city children in one building forming the Moweaqua School District. 

Of course, this meant the new school district would need more space. But a school large enough to house the increase in students would require plans and money. Because the school district could raise only half of the amount of money suggested by professional contractors, the new school on Pine Street was built by the town residents’ volunteer work. The need for more space increased. Two additions since 1960 added more classrooms, bathrooms, a cafeteria, a library, a bus garage, and an office.


In 1992, Moweaqua and Assumption consolidated to create the Central A & M School District.

MOWEAQUA CHURCHES

Over the years, at least 14 churches have been established. Most congregations began with a few families first meeting in a member’s home.

As interest grew, the members raised funds and constructed actual church buildings. 

These churches were established 1837-1900:

Methodist Church



1837


New Liberty Christian 

          1850s

closed 1902

Locust Grove



1855



Little Flock Baptist


1857


First Baptist




1864





Salem German Methodist


1866

closed 1920


Presbyterian 



1867

closed 1964 

Fame Evangelical



1868



Sanner Chapel



1875

Union Predistinarian Baptist

1881

closed 1976

Saint Francis De Sales Catholic 
1895

First Christian


          1896


MOWEAQUA COAL MINE
“Coal discovered in Moawequa” was announced in the Moawequa Call-Mail Newspaper in 1889, but the Moweaqua Coal Mine was not started until December 1891. The first coal was offered on the market in mid-September of 1892. 

By 1897, over 100 miners were employed at the mine. The miners worked two eight-hour shifts. Third shift was for blasting. The miners’ jobs included: cage men, motor men, mule drivers, shot firers, blacksmiths and the coal miners. Over 60 percent of the miners immigrated from Italy, Poland, England, Austria, Hungary, Czechoslovakia and other European countries.

Each miner had a number on a set of tags. These tags were used to clock in and to tag each coal car loaded. The miner was paid by how much coal he loaded. This explains why so many fathers and sons worked in the mine to support their families.

Each miner wore a hat with a carbide light attached. The fuel for the light lasted about two hours; consequently the miner had to carry extra carbide in a flask. Each miner also carried a lunch bucket with compartments for drink, main meal and dessert. 
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The picture above shows how the mine looked in 1925. The large building on the right is the tipple of the mine where the mineshaft went down 625 feet. The building on the left is the engine building, which powered the cages to take miners down in the mine and to bring up the cars full of coal.

Work at the Moweaqua Coal Mine was seasonal with mining only done September through March. The rest of the year, the miners worked as farm laborers or local craftsmen. 

Mules in the mine moved the coal cars. They were taken down in the mine at least three weeks before mining began to get accustomed to the darkness. At the end of mining season, the mules would be pastured north of 

town. They stayed in the barn and were gradually brought out into the light. 

The same mules were used year after year. Caged canaries were also used in the mine to detect poisonous gases. The gas affected the birds first and warned the miners of danger.
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In the 1920s, area farmers would sell a load of grain at the Farmers’ Co-op Elevator and then go to the coalmine for a load of coal before going home. The farmers pictured above are lined up on Cherry Street waiting to get coal.

In 1932, 105 men worked in the Moweaqua Coal Mine, and they brought up 37,433 tons of coal per month.

The Day of the Moweaqua Coal Mine Disaster
December 24, 1932
On December 24, 1932 at 8:15 AM, the whistle blew at the Moweaqua Coal Mine site. People came to the mine site from all over town because they knew this signal meant something was wrong at the mine. It was Christmas Eve Day and only about half of the miners were working.

That day, a methane-gas explosion trapped 54 miners 625 feet below ground. Only two miners, Frank Floski and Ibra Adams, survived the disaster. They were near the cage at the bottom of the mineshaft. Rescue miners came from Pana, Springfield and other surrounding areas to help in the rescue. These men were specially trained in mine rescue. No Moweaqua miners were allowed to go down in the mine and help with the rescue.

Falling dirt, coal and slate blocked the tunnel mouth. Rescue workers worked all day and night in hopes of finding the miners still alive. The 
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Illinois Central Railroad provided rail cars to feed and bed the workers. Local residents brought food to the rescue workers and crowd. Family members of the miners anxiously waited for news from the rescue workers.

On Sunday morning, about 28 hours after the explosion, the rescue workers reached the first group of imprisoned miners. The rescue effort continued for six more days until the last miner’s body was recovered. 

In this disaster, 54 miners died. The oldest miner was David Cooley, 69, and the youngest was Andrew Potsick, 18. Six of the 54 miners killed were under the age of 20. These miners left 33 widows and many children. Three children were born after their fathers’ deaths.

At the time of the disaster, R. C. Stine Funeral Home was the only funeral home in Moweaqua. Funeral directors from all over the area assisted in preparing the bodies for burial. 

A Catholic Mass was held for 24 miners at the Moweaqua High School gym. Other miners had individual funerals or small group funerals at their own churches or homes. The Pana Rose Factory donated over 5000 roses, so each casket would have a spray of flowers for the casket.

The mine reopened in July 1933 but closed two years later.
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We Remember: 
There are five memorials to help the citizens of Moweaqua remember the miners:

· A stained-glass window in the Catholic Church depicts the miner’s hat with a miner’s pick. Every Christmas Eve, a special mass is held.

· In 1964, a monument was placed in the center of Moweaqua Central Park with each of the 54 miner’s names engraved on it.

· A flag was designed depicting the coal miner with a carbide light shining on the face of coal with the year 1932 engraved in the center of the coal. The backside has the words ‘Moweaqua Coal Miner’ on it. These flags are placed at the miners’ graves during the weeks of Christmas and Memorial Day.

· On May 25, 1986, the Coal Mine Museum was dedicated in memory of the 54 miners killed in the disaster.

· On December 22, 1990 a memorial at the Moweaqua Mine site was dedicated. Historical marker, benches, names of the miners and a flagpole were placed in remembrance.
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THIS IS THE SITE OF THE MOWEAQUA COAL
MINE DISASTER WHICH ON DECEMBER 24, 1932
TOOK THE LIVES OF ALL 54 MINERS ENTERING
THE MINE THAT DAY. THE MOWEAQUA COAL MINE
WAS SHELBY COUNTYS LARGEST. AN UNPRE-
CEDENTED DROP IN BAROMETRIC PRESSURE
ALLOWED METHANE GAS TO ESCAPE INTO THE
MINE. THE EXPLOSION OCCURRED AT 8 A.M.
WHEN THE GAS WAS IGNITED BY OPEN FLAME
CARBIDE LIGHTS. EFFORTS OF RESCUE TEAMS
SEARCHING FOR SURVIVORS WERE IN VAIN, AL-
THOUGH ALL BODIES WERE RECOVERED. THIS
MARKED THE END OF THE ERA OF OPEN FLAME
CARBIDE LIGHTS.
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Miners Lost on December 24, 1932

James Birley – 46 – married – 5 children

Tom Birley – 44 – married

Kenneth Board – 25- single

George Burrell, Jr. – 27 – married – 1 child

Charles Campbell – 21 – married a few days before disaster

Ed Campbell – 50 – married – 4 children

Jules Castagnolia – 46 – married

Roy Catherwood – 39 – married – 2 children

David Cooley – 65 – married

Andy Corby, Jr. – 28 –married – 1 child

Andy Corby, Sr. – 55 – married

John Corby – 28 – married – 1 child

Chester Cravens – 50 – married

William Davidson – 58 – widowed (from Stonington)

Zelva Davis – 40 – married – 2 children

Arthur Dove – 48 – married

Earl Dowd – 36 – married – 5 children

Mike Floski – 25 – married – 1 child

Lynn Green – 24 – married, just returned from his honeymoon

Charles Hartman – 23 – single

Leonard Hartman – 35 – married – 5 children

John Hartsalla – 28 – married – 2 children

Oliver Hudson – 25 – married – 2 children

Thomas Jackson – 55 – married (town Santa)

Lotsie (Max) Jurick – 45 – single

Joseph Jurick, Jr. – 48 – married

Andy Kapilla – 30 – married – 2 children

Joe Krall – 59 – widowed

Mike Krajnack – 52 – married – 1 child

Carl McDonald – 23 - single

Charles McDonald, Jr. – 18 – single

Charles McDonald, Sr. – 64 – married – 2 children

Joe Negray – 22 – single

Mike Negray – 25 – single

George Ondes – 41 – married – 2 children

Ross Portwood – 50 – married

Mike Potsick – 54 – married – 7 children

Andy Potsick – 18 – single

Mike Ragellis – 46 – married – 5 children

Charles Roff – 45 – married – 1 child

James Roff – 19 – single

Roy Reatherford – 40 – married

Raymond Sarver – 21 – single

Verne Sarver – 22 – single

Sam Segloski – 26 – single

Andy Smorado – 60 – married – 1 child

Andy Supinie – 19 - single

John Supinie – 42 – married – 3 children

Louis Tabacchi – 41 – married – 2 children (from Stonington)

Hugh Thompson, Jr. – 20 – single

Andy Tirpak – 19 – single

Mike Tirpak – 49 – married – 8 children

Charles Woodring – 25 – single

Charles Yonikus – 60 – married
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